Disposition of questions and comments received in response to the

Facilities Construction, Engineering, and Technical Services (FaCETS) Draft Request for Proposals.


	Questions or Comments
	Disposition or Response

	(1)  From the Industry Day Tour:  While touring Building 79, it was observed that there were many construction materials (i.e., conduit, pipe, wire, fittings, etc.) stored in a “mini construction” trailer warehouse system. Attachment #6 defines the Government Property to be provided to the contractor as office-related equipment, radios, and GPS/Survey instruments (not any construction materials).

Who owns the materials, trailers, temporary structures, etc? What contractual requirements are there for the storage and provisioning of construction materials? Does NASA own this inventory? Does NASA expect the FaCETS contractor to take possession of or somehow manage these existing materials? Are all of the construction materials to be provided by the FaCETS contractor as part of the FFP Task Orders?
	(1)  All of the permanent storage buildings are NASA-owned property.  New Exhibit 7 provides a partial site map of the permanent storage buildings associated with Bldg. 79 (showing the permanent storage buildings 080, 081, 081A, 081B and 081C).  These NASA-owned buildings will be provided to the successful FaCETS Follow-on Contractor.  The various mobile trailers are either Contractor-owned or Contractor-leased property.  Of the observed materials in the subject permanent buildings and mobile trailers, only the carpet stock is NASA-owned material.  The remainder of the material is the property of the current FaCETS Contractor.  Following award of the current FaCETS Contract in 2000, the successful Contractor negotiated the purchase of some materials and mobile trailers from the prior Contractor.  The Government cannot confirm that a similar arrangement would be offered to the successful FaCETS follow-on Contractor.

	(2)  From the solicitation cover letter: The draft FaCETs procurement is for A-E services for design tasks under $500k. During the Industry Day question period, multiple questions were asked with regard to the $500k ceiling.

Can NASA clarify that all FaCETS task orders are under $500k, regardless of scope? Or, does the $500k limit apply to A-E design task orders only?
	(2)  Task orders for A-E design work to be performed under the FaCETS contract will consist of A-E design work on projects with an estimated construction value of $500,000 or less.  A-E design work on projects with an estimated construction value of greater than $500,000 will be performed under the GSFC Multiple-Award A-E contracts.
Aside from the overall minimum/maximum amount of services that may be ordered under this FaCETS contract as described in solicitation clause GSFC 52.216-92, there is no dollar limit to the individual task orders that may be issued for engineering and technical services, information resources services, or construction services under the FaCETS contract.

	(3)  General DRFP Review: No direct mention of Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) was identified within the DRFP.

Can NASA provide confirmation as to whether or not there is a CBA requirement for the FaCETS contract?
	(3)  The FaCETS contract does not involve any Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs).

	(4)  Section L, Page 84, first paragraph: This paragraph states that Exhibit 1 (work load history from 2007-2009) should be used to identify the proposed number of personnel by discipline in each Statement of Work area (i.e., Contract Project Management, Architect and Engineering Services, Information Resource Services, Work Management and Control Services, and Construction Services); however, Exhibit 1 addresses only Engineering Study Task Orders (SOW Section 2.1.B) and not the total FaCETS contract work load history across all SOW areas from 2007-2009. As the FaCETS contract will be an IDIQ fixed price task order contract, it is not clear of the value to the Government or how the organizational plan will be used in the evaluation of the offers when all work will be fixed price task orders, especially when the Exhibit 1 task order work load addresses only engineering studies and the Exhibit 3 pricing charts address work scope man hours and quantities which are only estimates.

It would seem that in order to develop the proposed multi-discipline staffing needs for the upcoming procurement, the total contract work load history for all task orders from 2007-2009 should be a part of the RFP package. Will NASA provide this information? Also, will NASA clarify how the organizational plan will be used in the evaluation of proposals? In order to create a meaningful organizational plan by discipline, can the Government provide the projected yearly magnitude of scope with some breakdown of projected work areas?
	(4)  Draft RFP Exhibit 1, Workload History from 2007 to 2009, includes five spreadsheet tabs, entitled: (i) Eng. Study Task Orders; (ii) A-E Design Task Orders; (iii) Construction Task Orders; (iv) Planning Study Task Orders; and (v) IR Services Task Orders.  All together, these tabs contain a list of all task orders issued under the current FaCETS contract from 2007 to 2009.
Exhibit 1 is revised to clarify that there is more than one spreadsheet tab (by referencing the tab number in each spreadsheet heading).  For example:  "Engineering Study Task Orders Spreadsheet, Tab 1 of 5".

Draft RFP Exhibit 1 lists all task orders issued under the FaCETS contract from 2007 to 2009.  However, from 2007 to 2009 there was not a separate Multiple-Award Construction contract nor were there separate Multiple-Award A-E contracts at GSFC.  GSFC has since revised its contract configuration so that when this FaCETS follow-on contract is awarded, GSFC will have both a separate Multiple-Award Construction contract and separate Multiple-Award A-E contracts.  To provide a realistic projection of the FaCETS workload under this new contract configuration, the Workload History spreadsheet for the Final RFP is revised to include only those task orders which would have been issued under the FaCETS contract if the work had been split between the FaCETS contract, a Multiple-Award Construction contract and Multiple-Award A-E contracts.
The organization plan will be evaluated as described in solicitation Section M.3.1(a).

	(5)  Section L, Page 84, eighth paragraph: Reports identified as required in the Performance Measurement and Control (PMC) Plan include a report on the accuracy of engineering estimates.

Can the Government define “engineering estimates” in the context of the FaCETS contract and the requested information from the PMC? If engineering estimates refers to a conformance to the fixed price task order amount, can the Government please clarify the concerns with regard to conformance to fixed price task orders?
	(5)  Design pricing for each design task order shall be determined as a percentage of the escalated total engineering cost estimate for construction.  This is the estimated cost escalated to the midpoint of construction, including management but not including any contingencies, engineering, or Government quality assurance costs.  The Contractor’s engineering estimates shall be used by the Government as indicated and will be assessed for accuracy.  The Contractor will not provide engineering estimates for non-design task orders.  Non-design task orders will require Contractor Proposals in lieu of engineering estimates.

	(6)  Section L, Page 85, Small Business (SB) Subcontracting Plan: The table provided reflects the Contracting Officer’s assessment of appropriate SB subcontracting goals to be achieved at the completion of contract performance. The subcontracting goals for this acquisition are expressed as a percentage of the IDIQ maximum ordering value which totals 20%. During the Industry Day, a question response implied the subcontracting goal totals 25%.

Can the Government clarify the FaCETS SB subcontracting goal for the next contract period?  Are the SB subcontracting goals provided in the DRFP different from those on the current contract?  If so, will NASA provide the current goals and an understanding as to why the goals are changing?  Will the Government provide the magnitude of SB subcontracting performed on the current FaCETS contract?
	(6)  The Small Business Subcontracting Goals for the upcoming contract are as shown in the table in solicitation provision L.19 3(a), section entitled "Small Business Subcontracting Plan." The small business set-aside goal for all categories combined is 20 percent, which is the total of all percentages in the table.
The current FaCETS contract was awarded in 2000 and this new FaCETS procurement differs in scope from that effort.  Due to the changed economic and business conditions since the award of the current FaCETS contract, as well as the differing scope of work, the Small Business Subcontracting Goals in the new FaCETS solicitation differ from the subcontracting goals for the current FaCETS contract.
GSFC's Office of Small Business Programs performed an assessment of the small business subcontracting opportunities for this new FaCETS procurement based on historical data and an in-depth review of the functional requirement of each element of work to establish the subcontracting goals included in the new FaCETS solicitation.
The following subcontracting goals were established for the RFP for the FaCETS contract awarded in 2000 (these figures are provided here for information only since the conditions reflecting the establishment of these subcontracting goals are no longer applicable):

Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Concern

10%

Women Owned Small Business Concerns

 5%

Historically Black Colleges and Universities

 0%

HUBZone Small Business Concerns


 1.5%

Other Small Business Concerns



13.5%

Total Small Business Subcontracting


30.0%

Note:  "Veteran Owned Small Business" and "Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business" categories were not included in the FaCETS contract awarded in 2000.

The incumbent FaCETS Contractor has exceeded the Total Small Business Subcontracting goal.  The Government will not provide a further breakdown of the incumbent Contractor's subcontracting goal performance under the current contract because the differing scope of work in the new FaCETS RFP may render the information misleading.
As stated in the solicitation, "…Offerors must perform an independent assessment of the small business subcontracting opportunities and are encouraged to propose goals exceeding the recommended goals where practical."

	(7)  SOW, Section III, Work Management and Control, Page 38, sixth paragraph: States the annual average number of task orders processed through FMD is 776. Yet in Exhibit 1 (work load history 2007-2009), there are only 36 Engineering Study Task Orders listed. Assuming FMD awards a large percentage of the 776 average annual Task Orders to the FaCETS contractor, then only a small portion of the contract work load over the past three years has been provided.

It appears there may be a disconnect between the information in the SOW and Exhibit 1.  Could the Government please provide clarification for the expected workload for all task orders across the SOW areas?
	(7)  See response to question (4) above.

	(8)  Section L, Section L.19, Subfactor C, Page 88: States that a list of items should be included in the HSE Plan. This list includes programs for asbestos, hearing conservation, and respiratory protection (amongst others). For each of the programs listed, there is a cost associated with health and safety monitoring (audiograms, respirator fit tests, etc). Section G, P.14 (c )(8) says that the Government provides medical treatment services of a first aid nature.

 Will the Government provide medical services including performance of annual audiograms, respiratory fit tests, etc.?
	(8)  No.  The Government health facility is available to the Contractor for medical emergencies only.

	(9)  SOW, Section 1, Page 6, seventh paragraph: The contractor is required to keep a balanced workforce of cleared (SECRET) versus non-cleared personnel.

Can NASA be more specific on the meaning of a balanced workforce, i.e., what is the % of the current workforce by discipline skill type that has a SECRET clearance?
	(9)  Approximately 2% of the construction per year requires cleared (SECRET) personnel with an majority emphasis on electrical work.  Some mechanical and architectural work may also be included in the secure areas.

	(10)  SOW Section II.A, Page 15, fifth paragraph: The contractor shall provide as-built drawing updates on construction projects of various sizes.

Does this mean that the FaCETS contractor is responsible for updating all FMD as-built drawings from any construction contract being performed at Goddard? Or, is the Contractor responsible only for importing information from completed as-built drawings into the BIM database toolsets?

While the required timing to have these drawing packages updated is specified, it is not possible to estimate the magnitude of this work without being provided the number (on average) of packages received per month and the number of drawings in each package. Could this information be provided?
	(10)  Statement of Work Section II.A, "CADD/GIS/CAFM Services Overview" is revised to clarify that the Contractor shall incorporate ALL as-built changes into the CADD, GIS, and CAFM models as defined in the as-built construction drawings and walkthrough verifications conducted by the Government.  As-built drawings and information from all construction contracts performed at GSFC are included in this requirement.  The number of as-built packages and the number of as-built drawings vary from month to month.
 Statement of Work Section 2.II.A, "Building Information Modeling Standards (BIM)" describes that any required BIM support will be ordered separately by the Government under project-specific task orders.
Total CADD/GIS/CAFM work currently averages  approximately 1,000 hours per month.

	(11)  SOW Section 11.A, Page 23, CAFM Walk-in Support: The DRFP states that “The contractor shall fulfill CAFM-related “walk-in” customer service requests. …CAFM walk-in support services shall include tasks that can be completed within eight work hours. For such tasks that require more than eight hours to complete, a separate task order for “Project-Specific CADD/GIS/CAFM Services” will be issued.”

What is the average number of walk-in service requests per month? Or, can another metric which better defines the work magnitude be provided?
	(11)  For CAFM Walk-in Support, an average of 9.6 walk-in requests occur per month that are related to extracting information from the ARCHIBUS system.

	(12)  SOW Section I, Page 10, fourth paragraph: States that “Contractor design personnel shall keep the MAXIMO system database updated with information regarding the status (i.e., schedule, cost, etc.) of the design tasks.”

Are the current FaCETS contractor’s design personnel maintaining the MAXIMO database with current status of design tasks? Does the Government have any limitation or preference for the number of contractor personnel who have access to make task updates in the MAXIMO system? Have all the interfaces, accounts, and security configurations been implemented and are currently working per NASA’s desires?
	(12)  The current FaCETS contractor is responsible for updating the Work Request System with status, schedule, and cost information for the construction, design, study, and IR-related tasks.  In the FaCETS follow-on contract, the Contractor shall be responsible for updating the MAXIMO system with status, schedule, and cost information for the construction,  design, study, and IR-related tasks. The Government has enough MAXIMO licenses to accommodate multiple contractor personnel.  As stated in the Statement of Work Section II.B, the Government currently maintains 225 concurrent licenses for MAXIMO and may provide additional software licenses if it determines that requirements workload so warrants.  The MAXIMO work flow definition is still underway.  Interfaces, accounts, and security configurations have not yet been implemented.

	(13)  SOW, Part II, Information Resources Services (entire section): The majority of the monthly services rates for the Information Resources Services categories are defined as the functions which must be performed, and in some cases, the number of users which must be supported. It is not clear what the magnitude of the work scope is for these monthly services.

Can the Government provide any additional data that would aid the offerors in developing their estimates for the number of resources needed for these services? For instance, when maintaining a help desk, is there any type of data available that tells how many help desk tickets are submitted annually, the estimated number of hours spent addressing the help desk tickets, etc.?
	(13)  Based on the April 2010 workload for 22 business days, IR Services for the month totaled approximately 1,936 hours.  The breakdown of these hours were as follows:

Information Resources (programming, database, administrative work) – 880 hours

CAD – 880 hours

GIS – 176 hours

	(14)  Section H.9, Task Ordering Procedure, Page 23: This Contract clause gives a narrative description of the task ordering procedure. Given the large volume of task orders to be executed under the contract, any insight that can be provided into how the Contractor supports the Government’s workflow approval process and the associated logistics for sharing information would aid potential offerors.

Can a workflow description and diagram be provided for the task order initiation/approval process to provide additional clarity for potential offerors?
	(14)  New Exhibit 6, FaCETS Government Workflow Process, is added to depict the current process from work order initiation through the task order approval process.  MAXIMO will be utilized as the tracking system for this work flow.  The definition of the work flow process to track the progress of the work order is still in process.  By the date of contract award a new Task Order Management System (TOMS) may be implemented in addition to the MAXIMO tracking, but the process outline will remain similar to what is shown in new Exhibit 6.

	(15)  SOW, Section II, Sub-Section B, MAXIMO CMMS, Page 24, second paragraph: This section describes the intended, expanded use of MAXIMO on the upcoming FaCETS procurement.

Can the Government specify what modules of MAXIMO (either current version or with MAXIMO Version 7 which is planned) are currently implemented and being used?
	(15)  The Government is currently using MAXIMO version 6.2.4. The MAXIMO applications being proposed to track the FaCETS contract work are Work Order Tracking, Purchase Orders, Receiving, Invoices, and Escalations.  The Government plans to implement the Work Flow module, once the MAXIMO work flow definition process is finalized.

	(16)  Please clarify the correct solicitation number for this proposal NNG 10300172(R) or (J)
	(16)  NNG10300172J was the solicitation number for the Draft RFP.  NNG10300172R is the solicitation number for the Final RFP.

	(17)  The DRFP cover letter states A-E services for design tasks are for projects under $500K. Please clarify if the DRFP is referring to projects with a design fee under $500K or that have a construction cost value under $500K.
	(17)  See response to question (2) above.

	(18)  During Industry Day there was mention of a Multiple Award Construction (MAC) contract scheduled to be released. Please provide the expected date of release and provide clarification if the services under the MAC are a construction management at-risk or construction management as agent.
	(18)   The Multiple Award Construction Contract (MAC) Final RFP was released on May 27, 2010.  It is neither CM-at-risk nor CM-as-agent.  There will be no involvement by the MAC contractors during design phase of any project.  For construction, the MAC contractors will compete for the role of General Contractor.



	(19)  Please provide a rough estimate of the work split under the FaCETS for the four main SOW categories;  (1) A-E services  (2) engineering and technical services  (3) information resources  (4) construction services.
	(19)  A rough estimate of the work split under the new FaCETS contract is as follows:  (1) A-E Services 9%; (2) Engineering and Technical Services 1%; (3) Information Resources Services 20%; (4) Construction Services 70%.

	(20)  Cover Letter, Pg. 2; Solicitation, Item 6

The last sentence states, "None of the FaCETS requirements will be performed at Wallops Flight Facility". This no‐ Wallops statement may be in conflict with Section F, PLACE OF PERFORMANCE, sub‐section (b) that addresses A‐E service are allowed at "tracking stations". Please clarify.
	(20)  The Final RFP solicitation clause entitled "Place of Performance" is revised to clarify that no work will be performed at Wallops Flight Facility under this contract.

	(21)  Page 9 Solicitation, F6

Consider extending the construction task plan turn around duration to 30 days irregardless of the dollar value.  And, consider changing the calendar days to work days.
	(21)  The task plan submission period in the solicitation clause entitled "Construction Task Plan Submission Period" is revised from "calendar days" to "work days" and to include a definition of "work days".

	(22)  Page 14 Solicitation, G5.c.3.ii.8

Medical treatment of a first‐aid nature sustained while on duty can use the NASA medical facilities for treatment. Does the contractor have to pay for these services?
	(22)   The NASA medical facilities are available to the contractor for emergency medical purposes only.  Emergency medical services are provided at no cost to the Contractor.

	(23)  Page 23 Solicitation, H.9.b.3

Task plans must be submitted for each task including: Technical Approach, period of performance, cost information and other information. Are these task plans required for the Cat A construction tasks (less than $5,000)?
	(23) The contractor shall submit task plans for all task orders.

	(24)  Page 23 Solicitation,H.9.c.2

Design task plans are due 14 days after receipt of the RFP. Consider extending the design task plan turn around duration to 30 days.
	(24)  Due to the Government's need to complete all work in a timely manner, the required time frame for submitting design task plans cannot be extended beyond the number of days stated in solicitation clause H.9.

	(25)  Page 32 Solicitation, I.21.b

Will the government accept pricing from a standard cost reference guide, such as R.S. Means , or will it be necessary to confirm that every individual unit price in the contractors' proposal is the best price available?
	(25)  For Admin 1 work line items, Offerors may use standard cost reference guides to develop the proposed unit prices.  For prices proposed for non-Admin 1 work line items in response to a request for task plan, the Contracting Officer must have sufficient information to be able to make a price reasonableness determination.  Therefore, for non-Admin 1 work line items, each of the Contractor's task plans must include a detailed cost breakdown in sufficient detail to allow such a determination to be made for any portion of work for which a price has not been competitively obtained.

	(26)  Page 35 Solicitation, Sect. I.66

The DRFP contains FAR clause 52.229‐3 Federal, State and Local Taxes (Apr 2003), please confirm that the new DRFP is not exempt from MD Sales/Use Tax.
	(26)  NASA GSFC will provide to the FaCETS Contractor a State of Maryland Comptroller of the Treasury Sales and Use Tax Exemption Certificate, Account Number 30005004.  The GSFC Federal Tax Exemption Account Number is 52-0734375.  The FaCETS Contractor shall use these Tax Exemptions to the maximum extent practicable when purchasing materials or equipment for work performed under this contract.

	(27)  Page 90 Solicitation, L 20‐2.b

Program Management Services, as listed in the Section J attachment 22 pricing schedule, list all Program Management staff and their loaded hourly rates. What types of programs is this meant to cover? Please clarify.
	(27)  Program Management Services and a sample program are described in solicitation Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Section 1.
Solicitation provision L.20 2(b) is revised to specifically reference Section 1 of the Statement of Work.  In addition, Statement of Work, Section 1, is revised to include a subheading, "Program Management Services" to facilitate location of the referenced requirement.

	(28)  Page 9 Attach 1, Sect. 2, Para I

"The task orders and requirements documents often do not clearly dictate the scope of design, leaving some flexibility to the designer. The Government does not intend that a separate study, investigation, or Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) be accomplished prior to design when the design approach is left flexible. The Government shall decide when a separate study, investigation or PER is needed prior to the design task." If the government does not agree with the design approach and wants to go in a different direction after plans have been submitted, how will the costs of the redesign be handled?
	(28)  After award of each design Task Order and before start of work, a pre-work conference shall be held at GSFC to review the scope of work, Requirements Documents, PER requirements, Final Design requirements, schedules, and other documents or information as may be available, and to acquaint the A-E with the site and existing conditions, and introduce all members of the GSFC and A-E teams.  It is also the intent of the Government that the A-E shall provide architectural and engineering services and designs that will result in economical and functional facilities within the available funds and specified time limits.  If the Government changes the scope of the design task order work, then a design task order modification will be negotiated.

	(29)  Page 9 Attach 1, Sect. 2, Para 1A

"To facilitate the timely start of designs, this pre‐design Government estimate shall become the basis for the Contractor’s final design fee up to the time the Contractor completes 35% of the final design (for projects of any value)." Many projects will be small enough that a 35% submission would not be part of the deliverables.  Some will go straight to 90%. At what point in the design process will the 35% estimate be performed and what documentation is needed to support the estimate? Will the final design fee be negotiated should the project be inadequately scoped and therefore inadequately budgeted?
	(29)  The 35% estimate will be performed at the completion of 35% of the final design.  If the Contractor and Government mutually agree to renegotiate the final design fee in accordance with Statement of Work Section 2.I.A , then a 35% design submission is required regardless of project size.  To renegotiate the final design fee, the Contractor shall provide an escalated total engineering cost estimate for construction and the completed 35% design.  If, at the completion of 35% of the final design, the final design fee does not need to be renegotiated and the contract does not otherwise require a 35% design submission, then no 35% design submission will be required.  Final design fees are only renegotiated if agreed to by mutual consent.  If the Government changes the scope of the design task order work, then a design task order modification will be negotiated.

	(30)  Pages 11 to 12 Attach 1

Are sealed drawings required for No Formal designs? Please clarify.
	(30)  Sealed drawing are not required for "No Formal Design" work.  Statement of Work Section 2.I.A is revised to clarify that the sealed drawings requirement is not applicable to "No Formal Design" drawings.

	(31)  Page 12 Attach 1, Sect. 2, Para 1A

[The Contractor shall also prepare GANTT chart schedules for projects; these GANTT charts shall include items such as milestone stages, design completion, and follow‐on requirements. The Contractor shall accomplish design tasks within the performance period specified in the task order, or, if not specified in the task order, in accordance with the applicable performance period established in the contract clause entitled, "Design Performance Period".] As part of the design process, how is the contractor going to create a design schedule and how will the contractor schedule "follow‐on requirements"?
	(31)  The Offeror shall propose the design performance periods in solicitation clause F.5, Design Performance Period.  For performance of design task orders, the Contractor shall develop its design schedule based on the applicable proposed design performance period.  Where multiple design submissions are required, the contractor shall propose the milestone dates for government review.
Follow-on services shall be scheduled based on information provided in the task order work statement and on the construction performance period defined in contract clause F.7, Construction Performance Period.

	(32)  Page 12 Attach 1, Sect. 2, Para 1A

"Pricing for each design task order shall be determined by applying the appropriate Design Fee Percentage (contract Section J, Attachment 22, Pricing Schedule) to the escalated total engineering estimate for construction. The escalated total engineering estimate is the estimated cost escalated to the midpoint of construction, including management costs but not including any contingencies, engineering, or government quality assurance costs. " Please provide the government's definition of "contingencies", as there are several industry definitions of this word?
	(32)  The use of the word “contingencies” in this context shall be construed to mean “qualifications or caveats or similar” that would permit the contractor to change its escalated total engineering estimate  for construction after it is submitted to the government, even if there is no change in scope for the particular task.  Stated differently, the escalated total engineering estimate for construction shall be a firm fixed price  that is not “contingent upon” anything.   

	(33)  Page 12 Attach 1

Where is the pricing category for No Formal Design Fee bids in Section J ‐ Attachment 22 as Exhibit 3 has the category but Section J does not?
	(33)  The fee percentage for "No Formal Design" tasks shall be entered into the table in solicitation Attachment No. 22, paragraph 4(a)(1), at the intersection of the row entitled "No Formal Design" and the column entitled "Total Design Fee % (A)".

	(34)  Page 12 Attach 1

Are Operational Readiness Reviews and acceptance test plans considered part of the design fee or are they to be priced separately?
	(34)  All follow-on services such as verifying that the facilities and systems operate in conformance with the design documents shall be considered part of the design fee.

	(35)  Page 13 Attach 1, Sect. 2, Para 1B

"The Contractor shall perform feasibility studies, specific investigations, state‐of‐the‐art building surveys, site surveys, master plans, underground utility marking, Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) data interpretation and resolution…" Please define what, "state‐of‐the‐art building surveys" means.
	(35)  The statement of work for each individual task order will define  any "state-of-the-art" requirements.  For example, an individual task order might require the Contractor to gather geospatial utility coordinates using GPS technology.

	(36)  Page 13 Attach 1, Sect. B, Para 1

What is the full extent of the Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) requirement under this contract?
	(36)  See contract Attachment 5, GSFC Construction Specifications section 01750, Equipment Alignment and Balancing for RCM.  Various sections of the GSFC Construction Specifications, such as section 15003, General Mechanical Provisions, reference RCM requirements.  In addition, Contract Attachment 2, FMD Standard Reference Document, contains section 3.16.1, RCM Program, and RCM is referenced in contract Attachment 1, Statement of Work, in Sections 1 and  2.I.B.

	(37)  Page 14 Attach 1, Sect. B, Para 1

AE Studies‐ Are fees allowed on specialty subcontractors, as this fee is not requested in the pricing structure?
	(37)  Fees are allowed on specialty subcontractors.  Accordingly, the following RFP documents are revised:  Solicitation provision L.20, section 2(c)(1)(ii), last paragraph; Attachment 1, SOW Section 2.I.B, last paragraph; in Attachment 22, Pricing Schedule, section 4(a)(2), a Specialty Subcontractor Fee Schedule is added; and in Exhibit 3, Pricing Charts, section (c)(1)(ii), a section is added for proposal of the Specialty Subcontractor Fee.

	(38)  Page 16 Attach 1, last para

What is the extent of the BIM requirement (project size, project type)? Please clarify.
	(38)  The Agency’s BIM standards and guidelines are currently being defined.  There is currently no established extent or limit.  Each task order will state the BIM requirements for that particular project.

	(39)  Page 27 Attach 1, Sect. 2

Primavera Expedition is mentioned. NOTE: This software is now called Primavera Contract Manager.
	(39)  The Statement of Work is revised to correct the name of the software to "Primavera Contract Manager."

	(40)  Page 39 Attach 1

How does the fee structure for design/build services differ from design‐bid‐build? Please clarify.
	(40)  The fee structure for proceeding with a "design-build" process as described in Statement of Work section 3.A does not differ from the fee structure for the conventional "design-bid-build" delivery process.
 The difference between the two processes is that in the "design-bid-build" process the full design is completed under a "design task order" before a separate "construction task order" is issued, while in the "design-build" process a single "design-build task order" will be issued and modified at the 35% design stage to include a final price for the remainder of the design as well as the construction of the project.

	(41)  Page 40 Attach 1, para 2

 The RFP indicates that the CM fee will cover bonds, insurance, fringe benefits, workmen's compensation, profit, etc. Does this mean that craft labor tax and insurance costs or just project management costs? Please clarify.
	(41)  The CM fee shall cover the "construction management" efforts including all costs associated with General Contractor effort.  All applicable Subcontractor costs and the cost to the Contractor for performing any portion of the work with its own workforce (e.g. craft labor tax and insurance) are considered part of the Subtotaled costs prior to applying the Contractor’s CM Fee.

	(42)  Page 41 Attach 1 pg 41 & Attach 6 pg 3

Attachment 1 page 41 states that the contractor shall provide radios. Attachment 6 states that NASA will provide 25 radios. Please clarify.
	(42)  Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Section 3.B, is revised to state that the Government will provide the radios.

	(43)  Page 42 Attach 1, D para 3

The DRFP indicates Admin 1 unit prices will include material, labor, delivery, clean up, and waste disposal.  Should equipment rental, handlings, tax and insurance markups on labor, other costs be included in the Admin 1 prices or as a separate line item?
	(43)  Attachment 1, Statement of Work Section 3.D, paragraph 3, is revised to clarify that the cost of any rental equipment shall be negotiated separately and shall not be included in the Admin 1 pricing.

	(44)  Page 42 Attach 1

A‐1: VAT removal is for tile and mastic only. What about when carpet needs to be removed with the VAT? Does the price include industrial hygienist costs? And, will all VAT be removed under containment parameters?
	(44)  Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Admin 1 Work Line Item A-1 description is revised to delete “assumes ‘nonfriable substantially intact’ removal” and revised to read, "includes removal of VAT and mastic and all other Construction Specifications SECTION 13285 requirements pertaining to VAT abatement, including containment, except that carpet abatement and Industrial Hygiene services are not included."

	(45)  Pages 42 to 46 Attach 1

All Admin 1 Line Items: The measurement and payment definitions need additional clarification.
	(45)  Units of measure for Admin 1 Work Line Items are provided in the Admin 1 Price Schedule in Attachment 22, Pricing Schedule, section 5(b).  Payment for work covered by Admin 1 Work Line Items shall be made at the task order prices determined as described in Attachment 1, Statement of Work Section 3.D.

	(46)  Page 43 Attach 1

A‐4: Flash Patch: Why just for 400 sf or larger area? What is meant by, "otherwise productivity adjustment"?
	(46)  The Government considers 400 square feet (sf) a reasonable minimum for using a flash patch unit price.  The price for flash patch efforts for less than 400 sf may be negotiated per applicable task order because of an anticipated reduced productivity for the smaller quantity.

	(47)  Page 43 Attach 1

A‐14: Stud/Drywall Partition: Is insulation included?
	(47)  Insulation is not included;  the description of Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Section 3, Admin 1 Work Line Item A-14 is revised to clarify that insulation is not included.

	(48)  Attach 1, General

All the scheduling and pricing is based on fixed dollar figures. Will there be an annual adjustment for inflation?
	(48)  The tables in Attachment 22, Pricing Schedule, and the spreadsheets in Exhibit 3, Pricing Charts, include areas where Offerors shall enter proposed prices and fee percentages for each contract year where appropriate.  No other annual adjustment for inflation will be made.

	(49)  Page 21 Attach 2 & Attach 3 pg 15

DRFP indicates cost estimates will be in 16 division CSI format. Does the government want use the new CSI format of 44 divisions? Please clarify.
	(49)  Cost estimates shall be formatted with 16 division CSI format.

	(50)  Page 21 Attach 2, Sect 3.14.5

Costs estimates are to be rounded to the nearest $1,000? Please confirm.
	(50)  Attachment 2, FMD Standard Reference Document, Section 3.14.15 is revised, in part, to read, "Estimates shall be rounded to the nearest $1."

	(51)  Page 15 Attach 3 Sect. 6.3

Cost estimates: To be bound in spiral binders. Please consider removing this requirement for estimates to be placed in spiral binders as many of the estimates may be less than 10 pages in length.
	(51)  Attachment 3, FaCETS Architect-Engineering Specifications, Section 6.3, is revised to delete the requirement for estimates to be placed in spiral binders.

	(52)  Page 2 Attach 6

Is there a limit on the quantity of personal computers provided by NASA? Will the standard computer package (software, RAM, etc) be customized depending on the needs of the IRS, AE, construction and management staff?
	(52)  The Government will provide all on-site computer services to the Contractor through the ODIN contract.  If a computer is requested by the contractor, the Government may either provide a new computer or reassign an available existing computer.  The standard computer package will be issued to Contractor personnel  unless the Government determines that the individual Contractor personnel spends the majority of their time utilizing CAD drawing tools and/or GIS graphics development.

	(53)  Page 2 Attach 8

Maryland Department of Licensing and Regulation: If a proposed Senior Architect or Senior Engineer is currently registered in a state other than Maryland, will they be considered to meet the required qualifications, or must they be currently registered in Maryland at the time of the proposal award?
	(53)  Registration/licensure shall be recognized by the Maryland Department of Licensing and Regulation.  If the registration/licensure is not recognized by the Maryland Department of Licensing and Regulation, then the minimum qualifications will not have been met.

	(54)  Pages 2 to 4 Attach 8

"Government's Minimum Qualifications for Specific Disciplines": The CADD Technician, Senior Systems Analyst, Programmer Analyst, WEB Master and Senior Program Analyst states that a 4‐Year degree is needed. Consider changing the 4‐year degree requirement to a 2‐year degree or equivalent experience?
	(54)  Attachment 8, Minimum Qualifications for Specified Disciplines, is revised to reflect that the Government’s minimum qualifications for various Information Resources Services disciplines are a 4-year degree OR a specified number of years of experience in a related discipline.

	(55)  Page 5 Attach 22, Sect. 2

Database/Programming Pricing Basis, Monthly Visual FoxPro support. Please clarify what is expected from the Visual FoxPro support.
	(55)  The Government will use Visual Foxpro support for the maintenance of EDMS, Tech Lib, and an archive version of WRS. The government will utilize .NET to maintain the web pages and to post reports on the web pages as well.  

	(56)  All Pages Attach 22

Description of Admin 1 pricing: Are there anticipated maximum/minimum ordering amounts, i.e., floor tile removal, carpet installation, etc?
	(56)  Aside from the terms in contract clauses entitled "Minimum/Maximum Amount of Supplies or Services" and "Order Limitations", there are no maximum/minimum ordering limitations for the individual Admin 1 work line items in Attachment 22, Pricing Schedule.  Solicitation Exhibit 3, Pricing Charts, contains annual estimated hours and quantities for Admin 1 Work line items for proposal evaluation purposes only and these are not to be construed and/or interpreted as the number of hours or quantities that will be ordered under this IDIQ contract.

	(57)  General

What are the guidelines for pricing non‐Admin 1 scope of work such as, labor productivity, labor markups, material handling, equipment rental, Davis Bacon, etc.?
	(57)  See Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Section 3.D, paragraph 3:  The ADMIN 1 unit prices shall include all costs associated with the complete effort, including but not limited to procurement of material, labor, delivery, clean-up, and waste disposal.  As explained in response to item 43 above, this does not include equipment rental.

	(58)  Page 5 Exhibit 3

R&R is defined as remove and replace. Admin 1 line items A‐28 and A‐29 would be the same according to this definition. Please clarify.
	(58) In Attachment 1, Statement of Work, Section 3, Admin 1 Work Line Items Acronyms table and in Exhibit 3, Pricing Charts, Section D, Acronyms and Abbreviations, "R&R" is revised to mean "Remove and Reinstall".  "Remove and Reinstall" means, for example, removing a ceiling tile and reinstalling the same ceiling tile, whereas "Remove and Replace" means removing a ceiling tile and replacing it with a new ceiling tile.

	(59)  On page 80 in the chart in section c.1 The Mission Suitability Volume indicates it is 25 pages long.  Part (a) Performance Measurement and Control (PMC) Plan indicates it is 15 pages long.  Is the Mission Suitability limited to 25 total pages, including the 15 already slated for the PMC Plan, or can you write a total of 40 pages to cover both of these pieces?
	(59)  The Mission Suitability volume shall be limited to a maximum of 25 pages, no more than 15 pages of which shall consist of the Performance Measurement and Control Plan.  The Cover Page, Indices, SOW Compliance Matrix, Phase-in Plan, Safety and Health Plan, Small Business Subcontracting Plan, and Deviations & Exceptions are excluded from the total Mission Suitability page count.

	(60)  On page 87 a NASA Mentor-Protégé Program is mentioned.  Can you provide details on the NASA Mentor Protégé Program or direct me towards a website for more information?
	(60)  Details on the NASA Mentor Protégé Program can be found on the NASA Office of Small Business Programs webpage at http://www.osbp.nasa.gov

	(61)  Under past performance, the RFP requests a list all contracts over $10 million completed or on-going in the past five years for similar efforts.  This could be an extensive list.  Then it request an evaluation by the clients to be submitted within 14 days of the RFP. And it wants a detailed description of the project that will take extensive effort.

Would NASA consider limiting the required number of past performance contracts to a maximum of 10 or so project/contracts?  If so, it would make the request easier for the bidders to understand and respond to and easier for NASA to evaluate.  Otherwise you might end up with over 50 projects from some of the bigger bidders.
	(61)   The solicitation provision entitled, "Past Performance Volume", section (a), is revised to limit the number of contracts or subcontracts for which past performance information will be required, "up to a maximum of the ten most recent, similar contracts or subcontracts."
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